90 YEARS ON THE EARLS ROAD

A short history to commemorate 90 years of the chemical manufacturing site on the Earl's
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The mind, like the Dyemakers hand, is coloured by what it holds, Anon.
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90 YEARS ON THE EARL’'S ROAD

FOREWORD

2009 is a landmark year in the annals of the Earl's Road Site at Grangemouth, which started life in
1919. In the post industrial Britain of the 21st Century it is a notable achievement that a chemical
manufacturing site is able to celebrate its 90th yearin continuous operation.

The origins and history of the Earl's Road site and how it has grown, developed and changed over the
last 90 years, is an important and fascinating story and some of this is captured in the pages which
follow. It is not intended as a definitive history but rather an attempt to capture some of the events,
products and people that have contributed, set against the major changes in technology, work
practises and company ownership over these years. Itis hoped that it will be of interest to those who
work, have worked at or have had another association with the Earl's Road site, which has been a
vital and integral part of the town of Grangemouth’s life since that day in September 1919 when
construction first began.

Many people have provided information and advice, there will no doubt be some errors and
omissions and for these the author takes full responsibility. | am grateful for the sponsorship of the
current manufacturing companies on site, KemFine, Syngenta, Fujifilm and Piramal Healthcare who
have supported this publication.

The Earl's Road Site here in Grangemouth, must now look forward to the significant challenges
ahead over the next 10 years, before being able to celebrate its centenary in 2019.

John P HM Blackie
Grangemouth
Scotland

January 2009
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FAMILY TREE OF EARLS ROAD

—

Kemira (Finland)

Syngenta 2000

Zeneca
Agrochemicals

Kemfine 2005

Avecia Fine Chemicals

Fuijifilm Imaging Colorants 2006
Piramal Healthcare 2005

Nicholas Piramal
(India)

Avecia Pharmaceuticals Fujifilm Corp  Avecia InkJet and
(Japan) Electrophotography

Avecia 1999

Novartis 1996
(Switzerland)

Sandoz
Ciba

|
Zeneca 1993

ICI Fine Chemicals Manufacturing Organisation 1981

ICI Organics Division 1944

ICI Dyestuffs Division

ICI (Dyestuffs Group) 1928

Imperial Chemicals Industries 1926

Brunner Mond
United Aikali
Nobel Industriues
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British Dyestuffs Corporation 1926

Scottish Dyes Limited 1918 (Grangemouth 1919)

Solway Dyes Company 1917 (Carlisle)

(Subsidiary of Morton Sundour Fabrics, Est. 1914) M and E sheds 1927




SITE MANAGERS SINCE 1919

Scottish Dyes and ICI John Thomas 1919 to 1930
Walter Hiscock 1930 to 1941
Unknown 1941 to 1942
Ewart Wisbey 1942 to 1952
William Reid 1952 to 1957

G R Underwood 1957 to 1962
AY Livingstone 1962 to 1965
Geoffrey Richards 1965 to 1980

Zeneca

Avecia

Syngenta

Fujifilm

KemFine

David Hyde 1990
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Alf Martin 1980 to 1983
John Blair 1983 to 1988
David Hyde 1988 to 1992

David Gartside
Peter Neuschal

Tom Shields

Tom Shields
Graham Snow
John Blackie

Jon Parr
Robert Swan
David Hall

Ronnie Hendrie

Stevie Lockhart

John Blackie

John Blair 1987

1992 to 1995 ' .
1995 to 1996 Walter Hiscock 1931
1996 to 1999

1999 to 2001
2001 to 2004
2004 to 2005

1999 to 2000 William Reid 1953
2000 to 2004

2004 to 2006 =
2006 to Present : :

2006 to Present

2005 to Present

GR Underwood 1962

Alf Martin 1980 Geoff Richards 1967 A. Livingstone 1964
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CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION TO 90 YEARS

OUR STORY

The commemoration of the 90th Anniversary of
chemical manufacturing on the Earl's Road Site at
Grangemouth is a major milestone for all the
businesses currently operating there and those in its
wider community.

The site, founded in 1919 by textile businessman
James Morton (1867-1943), has come a long way
from its roots in dyestuff manufacturing. As well as
those traditional strengths in colour chemistry from
which the site has produced leading dyestuffs,
pigments and printing inks, there are products
ranging from biocides for the treatment of swimming
pools and preserving cosmetics, additives for high
performance paints, intermediates for the
pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries, to
agrochemical ingredients which are used by
farmers and gardeners all around the world.

The unifying link in this wide range of products is
synthetic organic chemistry supported by technical
expertise and practical experience to produce the
high quality chemicals which have become
essential to every part of day to day life.

Morton gave his new factory an excellent start by the
selection of a large geographically level site with
good communications, a local workforce and a
strong focus on the application of scientific and
engineering skills.

His successors over the last 90 years have
continued to supply a variety of markets across the

b

Sir James Morton 1928

world to meet the needs of a wide range of
customers and the site has survived and prospered
inthe face of global pressures.

Since opening in 1919 the site has enjoyed strong
local support for its activities and the resident
companies and local community continue to derive
mutual benefit from, and maintain good relations
with, one another.

2009 is undoubtedly a time for recalling and
celebrating the past but also a time to look forward
as the Earl's Road Site, a key element of Scotland's
Chemical Science based Industry, seeks new
directions to ensure it's future profitability.

20 January 2009 20:43:07
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INTRODUCTION TO 90 YEARS

The people of Falkirk District continue to look to
the Chemical industries in Grangemouth, such as
those on the Earl's Road Site, to provide well paid
and secure employment. To a large extent the
future prosperity of the region and Scotland is also
linked to the benefits this industry generates
through taxation, spending and capital
investment.

The early chapters consider the birth and
development of the site and the origins of dyestuff
manufacture, against the backdrop of the history
of Grangemouth Town and then the early
innovations that led to the small Scottish company
becoming part of Britain's once most powerful
chemical group.

The post war developments are then described
which resulted in diversification of the types of
products made and to rapid expansion through the
late 1960s to the 1980s. Following this there was
a period of rationalisation of the original dyestuff
activities then the multiple changes in ownership
and divestment of businesses from the turn of the
new Millennium and more recently, growth and
renewal under new owners.

Finally, the later chapters consider the site's
connections with the local community, the
changes in working environment and the future
challenges facing the businesses on the Earl's
Road Site.

None of the past successes could have happened
without the commitment of the many employees

Archie Hunter Chemical Stores 1985

from the days of Scofttish Dyes to the present
multi-business environment on the Earl's Road
Site. It has been estimated that over the last 90
years in excess of 4000 employees have at one
time worked on the site. This is very much their
story.

BIRTH OF THE SITE

The Grangemouth Town Council gave permission
for a factory to be built on Earl's Road in July 1919.
Adevelopment as important and significant locally
as the creation of a new manufacturing site in
Grangemouth was reported in the 'Grangemouth
Advertiser on Saturday, 4th of October 1919, the
week after construction had first started.

20 January 2009 20:43:08



INTRODUCTION TO 90 YEARS

Dye Making in Scotland

Important Development at Grangemouth

A start has now been made with the large
Dye factory at Earl’s Road. Last week a
staff of men commenced to construct the
various roads required, and it is expected
that the foundations for the main buildings
will be laid at an early date. The Company
which is constructing the factory is a
development under the same control, of the
enterprise started shortly after the outbreak,
of war by Messrs Morton of Carlisle the
proprietors of ‘Sundour’. For many years
this firm had made a specialty of the
manufacture of fast dyed fabrics, the
complex colouring materials employed being
imported from Germany. With these
supplies cut off, and their special trade thus
threatened with disaster Messrs Morton
decided to attempt the manufacture of their
own dye stuffs. Notwithstanding many
obstacles, their effort met with remarRable
success, and for more than three years the
dye-making department, Rnown as the
Solway Dyes Company, has produced fast
colours, not only for their own dye works,
but also in increasing quantities of other
textile manufacturers and dyes throughout
the country.

T0 meet the growing home and export
demand for these special dye stuffs, and to
give the new industry room for expansion
when war-time restrictions were removed,
it became necessary to procure a new site
with adequate shipping and other facilities
for a large dye and chemical trade. The
town of Grangemouth, on the Firth of
Forth, was finally chosen both on account
of its convenient railway, harbour and
canal facilities, and also because of its
proximity to Edinburgh, Glasgow and St
Andrews Universities, on which it is hoped
to draw for the chemical and technical
staffs.

The new company — Scottish Dyes
(Limited) has acquired from the Marquis of
Zetland a track of 80 acres on the outsKirts
of the town, and building operations in
connecting with the factories are now in
progress.

It is understood that while the directors
desire to secure to Scotland a leading place
in the national production of dyestuffs, the
Company will meantime continue to
specialise in the fast colours in which it has
established itself, and in which success has
earned the approbation and assistance of

The Board of Trade

Grangemouth Advertiser, 4th October 1919

o, Lo
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INTRODUCTION TO 90 YEARS

DEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE

Itis possible to trace the development of the Earl's
Gate and Earl's Road area over the last two
hundred years. Old maps of the site from the mid-
nineteenth century show it as open land and fields,
part of the Kerse Estate, belonging to the Earl of
Zetland, with occasional residences in the vicinity.
No industrial development was shown until 1919,
when the original Scottish Dyes works was built on
the south portion of the site. The north site shows
no industrial development until 1951 and it was
developed to its full extent by the mid 1970s, apart
from the acquisition of an additional area on the
north east side to facilitate growth after 1999.

Around 1860 a rope works appears 200 metres to
the north of the site with the Grangemouth docks
and timber yard, 400 metres to the north. By 1899,
the docks had been enlarged and a railway line
constructed on the southern boundary of the site.
By 1921, the timber yards had been further
expanded and saw mills had developed adjacent
to the eastern boundary of the site. In addition,
railway sidings and engine sheds had been built
along the railway to the south and the Co-
operative Society soap works were located 400
metres to the south of the site and there was a gas
works 100 metres from the northern boundary. By
the late 1960s, the railway and marshalling yard to
the south of the site had greatly reduced in size.
This land eventually becomes part of the Jupiter
Centre inthe early 1990s.

South site looking south east 1972

The Forth and Clyde Canal used to run along the
northern boundary of the site, although this
section of canal was filled in between 1958 and
1973 and is now the Forth-Clyde Way, past the
location of the original Old Town of Grangemouth.

The original site was established in 1919 to the
south of Earl's Road, which forms the dividing line
between the north and south sites and gradually
expanded under Scottish Dye's and later ICl's
ownership from 1928.
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INTRODUCTION TO 90 YEARS

A, B and C sheds 1927

The first chemical plant buildings, traditionally
referred to as 'sheds', were named initially
alphabetically from Ato H. By the 1930s G, L, M,
N, R and Q Sheds had been added, S Shed for
standardisation of dyes was built in 1934 and in
the 1940s H2, W, V and L2 were built. The final
phase of South Site expansion occurred with the
building of Q2, G2 and L3 in the 1950s.

Development of the site infrastructure kept pace
with the manufacturing demands and facilities
such as arail distribution network across the site, a
boiler house for steam generation, engineering
workshops and warehouses were constructed.
During the period to the early 1960s, the main
products manufactured on site were vat dyes
derived from anthraquinone, along with novel
disperse, acid and solvent soluble dyes.

During the Second World War some
manufacturing and development effort was shifted
to drugs and medicines with their production
undertaken in L2, W and H2 Sheds. Further
growth lead to the 1-3 Plant being constructed on
the north site in 1951 as a dedicated active
medicines facility with production starting during
1953.

Between the 1950s and early 1960s the volume of
traditional dye manufacture increased on the
south site together with the level of medicinal
production in the L2 and 1-3 Plants. In addition,
phthalocyanine green pigments were
manufactured in V Plant on the south site. In the
late 1960s the first agrochemical products were
introduced in L2 plant.

From 1969 to 1973 the north site was further
developed with the construction of the 'Procion’
textile dye, 'Monastral' pigment and the
'Pyrimidines'agrochemical plants. All three plants
underwent further expansion and development
through the 1970s. By this time the level of
production of pharmaceutical and vat dyes began
to reduce, being replaced by the more profitable
specialties and agrochemical products. As a
result, from the late 1970s a progressive
rationalisation of the south site was initiated with
the older plants or 'sheds' being demolished. By
1992 the majority of original plants such asA, B, C,
D,G,H,H2,J,K,L,N, Qand Q2 were gone.
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